
 
MINUTES 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
OCTOBER 17, 2007 

 
 
The City of Bradenton Planning Commission met on Wednesday, October 17, 2007 at 2:00 p.m. in 
City Hall Council Chambers. 
     
UUATTENDANCEU  
 
  Planning Commission Members  (Shaded area indicates absence, 
  *Indicates non-voting): 
 

 

 
 
City Staff:  
 

Development 
Services 

Chairman 
Diane Barcus 

Richard Barnhill Carlos         
Escalante 

 

Vice-Chair 
Lucienne 
Gaufillet 

 Allen Yearick 
  

Allen Prewitt  
 

 
Alternate 

Brady Cohenour 
Alternate  

O.M. Griffith 
 

Alternate Joseph 
Thompson 

Public Works Fire  
 

Police 

Director 
Tim Polk 

Arlan Cummings Kenny Langston  

Assistant Director 

Planning Commission Meeting – October 17, 2007 
 

1

Tom Cookingham 
     

Dev. Review Mgr.
Ruth Seewer 

    

 Review Coordinator    
Susan Kahl 

 
UUPRELIMINARIES  
 
Meeting called to order by Chairman Diane Barcus at 2:00 p.m.  
  

1) The Chair advised that with the exception of variance requests all items being considered 
at this meeting would be heard by City Council at its regularly scheduled meeting on 
Wednesday, November 14, 2007 at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise announced. 

2) Pledge of Allegiance at 2:01 p.m. 
3) Mr. Yearick displayed a Colorado Rockies baseball cap stating that his brother-in-law was 

the manager of the team which was in contention for the World Series. 
4) Mr. Prewitt moved, with a second by Ms. Gaufillet, to approve the Minutes of September 

19, 2007.  Motion carried unanimously. 
5) Ms. Kahl swore in all those wishing to speak before the Commission. 

 



Planning Commission Meeting – October 17, 2007 
 

2

OLD BUSINESS 
 
VA.07.0037 WARD 5 NEIGHBORHOOD 1.03/1.04 RS 
Request of Anthony Melkey, agent for Greenbriar Nursing Home, owner, for Variance for reduction 
in front yard setback from 25 feet to 2 feet to provide a covered entrance for emergency vehicles 
for property located at 210 21st Avenue West (Zoned R-3A) 
 
Ms. Seewer read the request.   
 
Anthony Melkey, 3912 46th Avenue, St. Petersburg, architect representing the owners, presented 
the request. He advised that the owners have several nursing homes around the State which they 
have been updating and providing covered entrance areas.  Mr. Melkey stated that in this instance 
the interior had already been done, a new entrance had been done and the third phase was to 
provide the covered emergency entrance to protect patients during inclement weather. 
 
Responding to a question by Mr. Thompson, Mr. Melkey replied that the law pertained to new 
facilities but they wanted to bring the nursing homes up to the new standards. 
 
Public Hearing:
The Chair reopened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in favor, and no one appeared.  
The Chair reopened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in opposition, and no one 
appeared.  The Chair closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Public Works - 
Mr. Cummings said that he had no comments. 
  
Fire Department - 
Fire Marshal Langston stated that he no comments. 
  
Staff Report- 
Ms. Seewer stated that staff recommended approval with the stipulation that the structure would be 
constructed according to Fire Department comments regarding openings and sprinkling. 
 
Ms. Gaufillet moved, with a second by Mr. Barnhill, to approve VA.07.0037 with the stipulation that 
the structure be constructed according to Fire Department comments regarding openings and 
sprinkling.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
PR.07.0032 WARD 4 NEIGHBORHOOD 20.04 RS 
Request of Hough Engineering, Inc., agent for Morgan Johnson Associates, LLC., owner, for 
approval of a Planned Development Project (PDP) for an Office/Retail Park for property located at 
5520 & 5530 SR 64 East (Zoned PDP) 
 
Ms. Seewer read the request.   
 
Marla Hough, agent for Morgan Johnson Associates, LLC., owner, presented the request. 
 
Public Hearing:
The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in favor, and no one appeared.   
The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in opposition, and no one 
appeared.  The Chair closed the Public Hearing.   
 



Planning Commission Meeting – October 17, 2007 
 

3

Public Works - 
Mr. Cummings had no comments. 
 
Fire Department - 
Fire Marshal Langston pointed out that there was a piece of County property in the middle of this 
site, and the owners of the new development would be responsible for gating it.  He said that a 
dual activated gate opener that activated for emergency services and for the residents was needed 
and the driveway had to be a minimum of 15 feet.  
 
Ms. Hough said that these items were already included in the site improvement plans which would 
be submitted.  She remarked that there would be a proposed gate with private keypad and Barbara 
Levine, attorney for the project, worked with the owner, Mr. Parks, who was agreeable to that 
approach. 
 
Fire Marshal Langston pointed out that it had to have emergency access for the Fire Department 
remotes. 
 
Staff Report- 
Ms. Seewer stated that staff recommended approval with the following stipulations including 
amendment to stipulation 4: 
 

1. Concerns of Public Works and Fire Department as outlined in their respective 
memorandums will be addressed on the site improvement construction plans. 

2. All trees scheduled for preservation will be adequately barricaded. 
3. During site construction adequate noise attenuation will be provided by the developer for 

the protection of adjacent residential properties. 
4. The westernmost entrance and private gate will be installed during the beginning of the site 

improvement phase of development in order to prevent inadvertent trespass onto private 
property.  The gate must have dual access for emergency vehicles with a minimum opening 
of 15 feet. 

5. If any species listed in Rule 39-27.003 through 39.27-005 of the Florida Administrative 
Code are observed frequenting the site for nesting or breeding purposes, appropriate 
mitigation and/or protection measures will be taken, with immediate notification provided to 
the PCD. 

6. The architectural design and features of the proposed buildings shall be consistent with the 
rendering submitted and identified as City of Bradenton Exhibit M, or otherwise approved by 
the Planning and Community Development Director prior to construction.  

7. The Final PDP must address all Stipulations and other Staff/DRC 
recommendations/concerns included in this report as determined by the Planning and 
Community Development Director.  

8. Any deviation from the approved requirements, as determined by the Planning and 
Community Development Director, may require a PDP amendment. 

 
After discussion among the Commission Members, stipulation 9 was added as follows: 
 
9. Trees will be placed in accordance with their growth pattern at maturity.  The remaining 

trees indicated for replacement will be added to the tree fund. Documentation will be 
provided with the Site Improvement Plan.  

 
Ms. Gaufillet moved, with a second by Mr. Yearick, to approve PR.07.0032 with the following nine 
stipulations: 
 



Planning Commission Meeting – October 17, 2007 
 

4

1. Concerns of Public Works and Fire Department as outlined in their respective 
memorandums will be addressed on the site improvement construction plans. 

2. All trees scheduled for preservation will be adequately barricaded. 
3. During site construction adequate noise attenuation will be provided by the developer for 

the protection of adjacent residential properties. 
4. The westernmost entrance and private gate will be installed during the beginning of the site 

improvement phase of development in order to prevent inadvertent trespass onto private 
property.  The gate must have dual access for emergency vehicles with a minimum opening 
of 15 feet. 

5. If any species listed in Rule 39-27.003 through 39.27-005 of the Florida Administrative 
Code are observed frequenting the site for nesting or breeding purposes, appropriate 
mitigation and/or protection measures will be taken, with immediate notification provided to 
the PCD. 

6. The architectural design and features of the proposed buildings shall be consistent with the 
rendering submitted and identified as City of Bradenton Exhibit M, or otherwise approved by 
the Planning and Community Development Director prior to construction.  

7. The Final PDP must address all Stipulations and other Staff/DRC 
recommendations/concerns included in this report as determined by the Planning and 
Community Development Director.  

8. Any deviation from the approved requirements, as determined by the Planning and 
Community Development Director, may require a PDP amendment. 

9. Trees will be placed in accordance with their growth pattern at maturity.  The remaining 
trees indicated for replacement will be added to the tree fund.  Documentation will be 
provided with the Site Improvement Plan.  

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
RV.07.0019 WARD 4 NEIGHBORHOOD  7.02A RS 
Request of Russell Tilton, agent for Geezers Parachute Inc., owner, for approval for Right-of-Way 
Vacation for part of an alley for property located at 2105 Manatee Avenue East (Zoned C-3) 
 
Ms. Seewer read the request. 
 
Russell Tilton, 873 Terra Ceia Road, Terra Ceia, was sworn in by Ms. Kahl.  Mr. Tilton requested 
that a 20 foot alleyway be vacated in exchange for an 18 foot easement due to a City of Bradenton 
underground utility, specifically, a sewer line.    
 
Public Hearing:
The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in favor, and no one appeared.  
The Chair then opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in opposition, and no one 
appeared.  The Chair closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Public Works - 
Mr. Cummings stated that he had no objections. 
  
Fire Department - 
Fire Marshal Langston stated that he had no objections. 
  
Staff Report- 
Ms. Seewer advised that letters from all utility companies have been received indicating no 
objection to the requested vacation.  She said that staff recommended approval based upon the 
General Standards and Regulations requirements pursuant to Section 202.G of the Land Use and 
Development Regulations with the stipulation that the north 18 feet of the area proposed for 



Planning Commission Meeting – October 17, 2007 
 

5

vacation be designated as a utility easement.  
 
The Chair noted that the owner of the other half of the easement desired not to have any of the 
property.   
 
Mr. Prewitt moved, with a second by Mr. Thompson, to accept Staff Recommendation based on 
the General Standards and Regulations requirements pursuant to Section 202.G of the Land Use 
and Development Regulations and approve RV.07.0019 with the stipulation that the north 18 feet 
of the area proposed for vacation be designated as a utility easement.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
SU.07.0042 WARD 4 NEIGHBORHOOD 7.03 RS 
Request of M.R. Friday & Associates, Inc., agent for Fred & Maria Berger, owners, for Special Use 
for an 85 foot dock extension for property located at 1625 1st Avenue East (Zoned R-1B) 
 
Ms. Seewer read the request.  
 
Michael Friday presented the request.  He said what they were trying to do was achieve some 
deeper water, roughly nine inches which could be significant at low tides.  Mr. Friday stated that 
they were proposing to extend a dock a total of 126 feet into the waterway which resulted in a 46 
foot encroachment beyond the 80 feet maximum permitted by the City.  He reported on the water 
depth study which was done in which a negative -.9 feet of water at mean low was found at lowest 
tide.  Mr. Friday commented that he did not know the intended use of the dock because the owners 
did not currently have a boat, but he knew they were active canoe and kayakers and perhaps 
owned a jet ski which was perfect water depth for that purpose.  Mr. Friday remarked that in 
relation to the anonymous telephone calls mentioned at the workshop, as to the caller who claimed 
the dock extension would result in environmental damage, his firm did a survey and no vegetation 
was found in the area just sand and silt.  As to the second caller, Mr. Friday said he appreciated 
the person’s environmental soundness, and he had no further comment.  Mr. Friday answered 
questions of the Commission Members. 
 
Public Hearing:
The Chair opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in favor, and no one appeared.  
The Chair then opened the Public Hearing for those wishing to speak in opposition, and no one 
appeared.  The Chair closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Public Works - 
Mr. Cummings stated that he had no objections. 
  
Fire Department - 
Fire Marshal Langston stated that he had no objections. 
 
Staff Report- 
Ms. Seewer stated that staff recommended approval for the dock construction.  She advised that 
all the State permits were in order. 
 
The Chair noted, for the record, that there were two anonymous telephone calls. 
 
Ms. Seewer read the telephone messages from callers in opposition:  one received on October 12 
who was opposed for environmental reasons and the other received October 16 who opposed 
because too many trees would be destroyed for such a long dock for just a few people.  Ms. 
Seewer stated that the caller indicated that her husband concurred with her. 
 



Planning Commission Meeting – October 17, 2007 
 

6

Ms. Gaufillet moved, with a second by Mr.  Yearick, to approve SU.07.0042.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
REPORT 
Ms. Seewer commented that she wished to inform the Commission that the first meeting on the 
EAR based amendments to the Comprehensive Plan was held last night and only a handful of 
people attended.  She stated that more aggressive advertising for the next meeting would be done. 
 
Mr. Polk gave a meeting report.  He advised that two more meetings would be scheduled in March, 
2008 and June, 2008.  Mr. Polk stated that seven elements were discussed, one of which was a 
design element dealing with compatibility and architectural style, issues that deal with 
neighborhoods, districts and corridors.  He said there would be an element, which would be done 
in-house, dealing with open space, and an element dealing with historical preservation with a 
pattern book to go with it.  Mr. Polk advised that the City was in conversations with Ringling School 
of Design and University of South Florida with regard to their Architectural Community Design 
Program.  He remarked that he would be meeting with local architects to act as mentors for the 
students putting this pattern book together.  He commented that the City would be working with two 
distinct neighborhoods:  traditional neighborhood – waterside village, traditional neighborhood – 
urban village.  Mr. Polk responded to questions by the Commission. 
 
Ms. Seewer stated that a few land use amendments would be presented to the Planning 
Commission in December and two meetings before the City Council in January, one a night 
meeting.  She advised that starting in January an element would be coming to the Planning 
Commission just about every month.  She hoped there would be more public participation.  Ms. 
Seewer emphasized that more aggressive advertising would be done to get people more involved, 
such as, an ad in the Sunday paper before the meeting and an ad in the water bills. 
 
The Chair suggested that eye catching paper be used in the advertisements in the water bills. 
 
Mr. Prewitt commented that he saw in today’s newspaper that there were issues with Riviera 
Southshore and its lenders.  He inquired that if Riviera Southshore goes into default whether a 
potential new owner would receive the density, etc.  Ms. Seewer responded in the affirmative 
adding the proviso if the permits did not expire by that time.  
 
Adjournment 
Mr. Yearick moved, with a second by Mr. Thompson, to adjourn the meeting at 3:00 p.m.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Diane Barcus 
Chairman 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 286.0105, IF ANY PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD, 
COUNCIL, AGENCY OR COMMISSION AT THIS MEETING, SUCH PERSON WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND 
FOR SUCH PURPOSE, MAY NEED TO WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 
 

Note:  This is not a verbatim record.  A recorded CD is available upon request for a $10.00 service charge. 


	Diane Barcus
	Richard Barnhill

